
ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

AGENDA 

Thursday, January 17, 2019 6:30 P.M. 
City of Grover Beach Council Chambers 

154 S. Eighth Street, Grover Beach, California 93455

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

II. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items that are
not on the Agenda

III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

A. November 15, 2018 Regular Meeting - Attachment

B. November 29, 2018 Special Meeting - Attachment

IV. OPERATIONS REPORT

A. Water Plant Operations, Reservoir Storage, Downstream Releases - Verbal Update

B. Projected Reservoir Levels - Attachment

C. November & December Monthly Operations Report - Attachment

V. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. Climate Update - Attachment

B. Low Reservoir Response Plan – Criteria for Enactment - Staff Report Attachment

C. Distribute Proposed FY 19/20 Budget - Distributed at Meeting

VI. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE
A. Lopez Spillway Assessment Update - Verbal Update
B.  Bi-Monthly Update - Attachment

VII. ACTION ITEMS (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)

VIII. ACTION ITEMS (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

A. Cloudseeding - Update on Schedule - Verbal Update

B. Flood Control District Easement Request – Goodman - Staff Report Attachment

IX. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
A. Contract Changes
B. Cloud Seeding
C. Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP)

X. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Next Regular Meeting is Tentatively Scheduled for 
March 21, 2019 at 6:30 PM at City of Arroyo Grande Council Chambers 

Agendas accessible online at SLOCountyWater.org 

1 of 38



SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL 
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 15, 2018 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call -- The Zone 3 Advisory Committee Meeting was called to
order at 6:30 PM at the Arroyo Grande City Council Chambers by Committee Chair
and Member at Large Representative, Jim Garing.

County Public Works Utilities Division Program Manager and Secretary to the Advisory
Committee, Andrea Montes, called roll. Members in attendance were:

• Brad Hagemann, Avila Beach Community Services District
• Kristen Barneich, City of Arroyo Grande
• Marcia Guthrie, City of Pismo Beach
• Mariam Shah, City of Grover Beach
• Jim Garing, Member at Large
• Shirley Gibson, Oceano Community Services District

II. Public Comment -- No public comment given.  Ms. Montes indicated Agenda Item VI.
D. was moved to Item XI. Action Items (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently
Required)

III. Approval of Meeting Minutes of September 20, 2018 -- Member Barneich motioned
approval; Member Shah second.  All approved; quorum was met, and motion passed.

IV. Approval of 2019 Meeting Schedule -- Member Barneich motioned approval;
Member Hagemann second. All approved and motion passed.

V. Operations Report
A. Water Plant Operations, Reservoir Storage, Downstream Releases -- Ms.
Montes indicated:  Lopez Lake elevation was 480.57 feet; storage was 19,965 acre-
feet (AF), which is 40% capacity; rainfall to date, since July 1, 2018, was .67 inches;
plant production was 5.113 million gallons per day (MGD); downstream release was
4.125 MGD; and State Water was 0 MGD.

No public comment was given. 
B. Projected Reservoir Levels -- Jill Ogren, Engineer with the Public Works Utilities
Division, indicated the Lopez reservoir dipped below the 20,000 acre-foot mark, which
is one trigger of entering the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP).

No public comment was given. 

C. September & October Monthly Operations Report -- Ms. Ogren indicated the
total water deliveries, including State Water, for the month of September was 500 acre-
fee (AF). The total water deliveries for the month of October was 467 AF.

Item III. A.2 of 382 of 38



Stored State Water for September was 1,300 AF and in November was 1,340 AF. Ms. 
Ogren indicated Stored State Water levels would decrease somewhat due to the two-
week State Water Project shutdown to perform maintenance in November.   

No public comment was given. 

VI. Information Items
A. Climate Update -- Ms. Montes indicated that according to the United States
Drought Monitor, the County continues to experience abnormally dry, moderate
drought and severe drought conditions as it has since March of 2018.  According to
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, there was a 60% to 70% chance of
above average temperatures when compared to the month of November in prior years.
There was no rainfall forecasted for September. No public comment was given.

B. Lopez Spillway Assessment Update -- Ms. Ogren gave an update of the
Department of Water Resources (DWRs’) Division Safety of Dams’ (DSODs’) required
assessment of the Lopez Spillway, in response to the Oroville Dam failure.

Ms. Ogren stated GEI Consultants completed the desktop assessment of the spillway 
and a report will be developed and received in December or January. It is anticipated 
recommendations will be made to proceed with a physical assessment of the spillway, 
which will be an unknown, unbudgeted cost.   

C. 1st Quarter Budget Status -- County Public Works Finance Division and Flood
Control Zone 3 Accountant, Kristi Smith, distributed the 1st Quarter Fiscal Year
2018/19 (FY 18/19) budget report for Flood Control Zone 3 for the period of July 1
through September 30, 2018. Ms. Smith indicated expenses through September 30,
(the end of the 1st Quarter) totaled 16% of the annual FY budget.

Ms. Smith reviewed graphs and indicated at the end of the FY: 

• Routine Operations and Maintenance (O&M) costs totaled 21% of the OM budget,
resulting in a balance of approximately $3.1 million available for the remainder of
the FY;

• Non-Routine O&M costs totaled 5% of the budget, resulting in a balance of
$724,000 available for the remainder of the FY; and

• Capital Outlay costs totaled 0% of the budget, resulting in a balance of $752,000
available for the remainder of the FY.

Ms. Smith indicated FY 2017/18 billing adjustments were mailed along with the
second installment of the FY 2018/19 billings due January 1, 2019.

No public comment was given. 

D. Low Reservoir Response Plan Update -- Ms. Ogren indicated the Lopez
Reservoir level was at 19,000 AF. As discussed earlier, a level of 20,000 AF or lower
is one trigger to enter the LRRP.  Another trigger is an “Emergency Declaration” by
the County Board of Supervisors. According to Ms. Ogren the Zone 3 Technical
Advisory Committee (TAC) comprised of technical operations staff from Zone 3
Agencies, recommended discussions of the LRRP and a local “Emergency
Declaration” continue in January 2019 when staff has a better idea of what the rainfall
amounts will be, with the intent of possibly reentering the LRRP at the beginning of the
water year in April 2019.

Item III. A.3 of 383 of 38



No public comment was given. 

VII. Capital Projects Update
A. Bi-Monthly Update -- Ms. Ogren presented a brief update of the Capital Projects
listed below.

• Spillway Assessment -- The desktop [report] assessment of the Lopez Dam
Spillway will be developed and received in December 2018 or January 2019. It is
anticipated recommendations will be made to proceed with a physical assessment
of the spillway, which will be an unknown, unbudgeted cost.

• Structural Assessment of Terminal Reservoir Dam -- Preliminary findings
suggested additional geotechnical investigation needs to be completed to
understand the soil below the terminal reservoir. A quote was received in the
amount of $90,000 to perform this work, budgeted for FY 2019/20.

• Domestic and Fire Flow Tanks Repair at Lopez Water Treatment Plant -- An
assessment was completed on the condition of the tanks. The Domestic Tank is in
fair condition. The Fire Flow Tank is in poor condition. Staff is working with a fire
flow engineer to determine the quantity of water (fire flow) needed. Once
determined, staff will discuss next steps.

• Lopez Water Treatment Plant Leach Field Repair/Replacement -- A site for a
new leach field is being explored.

• Existing Bypass Pipeline Condition Assessment-- Staff is investigating
possibility of using an existing backup pipeline to deliver State Water directly to the
Lopez Water Treatment Plant.

No public comment was given. 

VIII. Action Items (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)
No Action Items discussed.

IX. Action Items (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

Cloud Seeding Update -- County Public Works Water Resources Division Engineer,
Ray Dienzo, presented an overview of the proposed Cloud Seeding Program.
According to Mr. Dienzo, cloud seeding is a result of a “seeding agent” made of silver
iodide combined with the formation of water droplets, which then causes rainfall. The
“seeding agent” can be distributed from a ground-based seeding agent flare, or flares
attached to an aircraft wing.

Mr. Dienzo indicated a feasibility study was conducted in 2016 and was completed in
March 2017. The study was presented to the TAC.  Figures included in the study
suggested a 9% to 17% increase in rainfall as a result of cloud seeding. TAC members
agreed with these numbers as they matched with the 15% increase in rainfall resulting
from a trial Cloud Seeding Program initiated in the South County during the 1990s. Mr.
Dienzo indicated, through the proposed Cloud Seeding Program, creeks and
tributaries would receive an increase in water and groundwater levels would increase.

The TAC recommended moving forward with identifying any environmental impacts
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the first stage in approval of
a Cloud Seeding Program. Because of minimal impacts to the environment, a
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was completed and was scheduled to go before

Item III. A.4 of 384 of 38



the County Board of Supervisors (BOS) in June 2017. Due to the BOS’ questions and 
concerns regarding cloud seeding, the item was pulled from the BOS’ agenda. Mr. 
Dienzo reiterated the need for demonstrated support from Zone 3 Agencies in order 
to move the item forward to the BOS.  

Mr. Dienzo reviewed the methods used in cloud seeding including:  1) ground only 
sites; 2) aircraft only; and 3) a combination of ground sites and aircraft. He also 
reviewed the various costs and rainfall production associated with the methods of 
cloud seeding. According to Mr. Dienzo, when this information was presented to the 
TAC, the TAC unanimously endorsed the aircraft only option for a (5) five-month period 
during the winter. He recommended the Advisory Committee approve this option which 
would eliminate the immediate need to install ground sites and could present potential 
cost sharing between the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control Zone and Santa 
Barbara County whose Cloud Seeding Program has been in place since 1981.  

Discussion occurred regarding potential environmental impacts, water and soil testing, 
cloud seeding data and whether the Cloud Seeding Program could begin this winter. 
Although some members expressed interest in moving forward with the Program, 
others expressed interest in obtaining more information from the MND and Santa 
Barbara County before approving a recommendation. The Committee chose to 
schedule a “Special Meeting” to continue the discussion. Member Barneich motioned 
to schedule a “Special Meeting” within (2) two to (3) three weeks to discuss only the 
Cloud Seeding Program; all members approved. County Staff and Advisory 
Committee Members discussed holding the “Special Meeting” on November 29, 2018. 
Ms. Montes indicated she will reserve a venue and will inform Members of date and 
location.  

X. Future Agenda Items
A. Contract Changes
B. Cloud Seeding
C. Revisions to the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP)

XI. Committee Member Comments -- No comments made.

Meeting Adjourned at 7:41 PM 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Andrea M Montes 
County of San Luis Obispo Public Works Department 

Item III. A.5 of 385 of 38



SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL 
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
DRAFT SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 29, 2018 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call -- The Zone 3 Advisory Committee “Special Meeting” was
called to order at 6:30 PM at the Arroyo Grande Council Chambers by Committee
Chair and Member at Large Representative, Jim Garing, who stated the purpose of
the “Special Meeting” was to discuss a potential Cloud Seeding Program.

County Public Works Utilities Division Program Manager and Secretary to the Advisory
Committee, Andrea Montes, called roll. Members in attendance were:

• Kristen Barneich, City of Arroyo Grande
• Marcia Guthrie, City of Pismo Beach
• Jim Garing, Member at Large
• Shirley Gibson, Oceano Community Services District
• Brad Hagemann, Avila Beach Community Services District
• Jeff Lee, City of Grover Beach
• Brian Talley, Agriculture Representative

II. Public Comment -- No public comment given.

III. Action Items (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

A. Motion to pursue a Cloud Seeding Program for the Winter of 2018/19
contingent on Board of Supervisors’ approval and certification of a Mitigated
Negative Declaration of the Cloud Seeding Program -- County Public Works Water
Resources Division Engineer, Ray Dienzo, presented a proposed Cloud Seeding
Program—a continuing item from the November 15, 2018 Flood Control Zone 3
Advisory Committee Meeting. Mr. Dienzo indicated the purpose of the “Special
Meeting” was to further discuss details and concerns raised from the November 15
meeting.

Matthew Scrudato, Program Manager with the County of Santa Barbara Cloud 
Seeding Program was present to answer any questions the Committee had related to 
Santa Barbara’s Cloud Seeding Program that has been in place since 1981.  

Mr. Dienzo indicated that although the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the 
proposed Cloud Seeding Program included both the Salinas Watershed and the Lopez 
Watershed, the focus of the proposed Cloud Seeding Program is to target the Lopez 
Lake Watershed.   

According to Mr. Dienzo, cloud seeding is a result of a “seeding agent” made of silver 
iodide combined with the formation of water droplets from clouds at about 10,000 feet 
causing rainfall. The “seeding agent” can be distributed from a ground-based seeding 
agent flare, or flares attached to an aircraft wing.  

Mr. Dienzo indicated a trial Cloud Seeding Program was initiated in the 1990s for about 
(3) three years in the South County which resulted in about a 15% increase in rainfall.

Item III. B.6 of 386 of 38



The County of San Luis Obispo’s 2012 Master Water Plan includes cloud seeding as 
a potential supply option to be pursued by the County. Because the trial Cloud Seeding 
Program produced an increase in rainfall, in 2016 the Zone 3 Advisory Committee 
directed County Staff to pursue a Cloud Seeding Feasibility Study that was completed 
in March 2017. The study was presented to the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC), who recommended to move forward with the MND and bring the topic before 
the County Board of Supervisors (BOS), scheduled to be presented in June 2017. Due 
to BOS’ questions and concerns about cloud seeding, the item was pulled from the 
BOS’ agenda. Mr. Dienzo reiterated the need for demonstrated support from Zone 3 
Agencies in order to move the item forward to the BOS.  

Mr. Dienzo presented the Committee with various costs associated with the proposed 
Cloud Seeding Program in relation to the number of acre-feet (AF) of water that is 
projected to flow into the Lopez Reservoir as a result of the Program. Costs ranged 
from $37 per acre-foot for a 9% increase in rainfall, which equates to 2,946 AF; to $20 
per acre-foot for a 17% increase in rainfall, equating to 5,500 AF. These figures were 
included in the feasibility study.  

Mr. Dienzo indicated, through the proposed Cloud Seeding Program, creeks and 
tributaries would receive an increase in water, and groundwater levels would increase. 
Start up costs would begin at $155,000 for (4) ground-based seeding agent flares. 
However, Mr. Dienzo recommended cloud seeding via aircraft with costs at $268,000 
for a (5) five-month aircraft only program to eliminate the need to install ground-based 
units and save time.   

Mr. Dienzo indicated the recommended action by the Committee was to: 1) support 
approval by the County Board of Supervisors (BOS) of the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND); and 2) pending BOS approval of the MND, pursue an aircraft 
Cloud Seeding Program. Mr. Dienzo indicated if the Committee approved the 
recommended action, the proposed Cloud Seeding Program would be taken to the 
BOS on January 15, 2019 as a Public Hearing. 

Discussion focused on the program logistics, such as who would decide when the 
Cloud Seeding Program’s annual season ends and how the Program’s success would 
be measured. Mr. Dienzo stated the “suspension criteria” would be developed when 
the Program officially begins and would include who/how to bring the Program to a 
seasonal end. Mr. Scrudato indicated the Santa Barbara County Cloud Seeding 
Program was measured by analyzing data gathered over (20) twenty years. It was 
discussed that based on the feasibility study, cloud seeding would bring an estimated 
9% to 17% increase in rainfall annually.  

Member Gibson indicated she would support the aircraft only program. Member 
Barneich indicated after reading the materials provided by County Staff, she also 
supports the aircraft only program. Mr. Dienzo suggested, if the Committee found the 
Cloud Seeding Program favorable, eventually moving forward with ground-based 
units, due to the lower cost vs. aircraft.  There is a possibility that the County of Santa 
Barbara and the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District could share the costs associated with Cloud Seeding.  

Member Talley inquired who the “System Administrator” of the Program would be. Mr. 
Dienzo indicated the Flood Control District would contract with a Meteorologist to 

Item III. B.7 of 387 of 38



recognize weather patterns and County Staff would administer the Program and would 
have final say based on recommendations by the Meteorologist.     

Further discussion occurred regarding the effects of silver iodide. Mr. Scrudato 
indicated silver iodide is not water soluble and does not break down in soil. The 
Committee discussed sampling soil at the beginning of the program and over time.  

There was no public comment.  

Member Lee motioned to pursue cloud seeding for winter 18/19, considering aircraft 
only for a (5) five-month period contingent upon Board approval and contingent on the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration.  Member Hagemann second. Roll call vote took place; 
all approved and the motion passed. Staff was directed to pursue baseline testing cost 
and scope through discussions with the TAC prior to bringing the item back to discuss 
with the Advisory Committee.  

IV. Committee Member Comments -- Member Hagemann closed with thanking Staff
and Mr. Scrudato for the cloud seeding information.

Meeting Adjourned at 7:21 PM 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Andrea M Montes 
County of San Luis Obispo Public Works Department 

Item III. B.8 of 388 of 38



2.50

0.20

7.76

0.22
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.23

2.50

1.19

0.62

1.70

2.57

3.59
3.87

3.46

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

0.0

5000.0

10000.0

15000.0

20000.0

25000.0

30000.0

35000.0

40000.0

1/
1/
20

18

2/
1/
20

18

3/
1/
20

18

4/
1/
20

18

5/
1/
20

18

6/
1/
20

18

7/
1/
20

18

8/
1/
20

18

9/
1/
20

18

10
/1
/2
01

8

11
/1
/2
01

8

12
/1
/2
01

8

1/
1/
20

19

2/
1/
20

19

3/
1/
20

19

Pr
ec
ip
ita

tio
n 
(in

)

St
or
ag
e 
(A
F)

Date

LOPEZ RESERVOIR STORAGE PROJECTION

Actual Precipitation

Predicted Precipitation

Actual Storage

Projected Storage

20,000 AF

Note:
1. Storage projection is based on predicted rainfall from longrangeweather.com,
historic inflow based on predicted rainfall, 18‐19 downstream release requests, and 
municipal usage.
2.  Municipal Usage is based on 2010‐2017 average monthly deliveries.

Item IV. B.9 of 389 of 38



San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water District
Zone 3 - Lopez Project - Monthly Operations Report

November, 2018

149.41

Note:  Deliveries are in acre feet.  One acre foot = 325, 850 gallons or 43, 560 cubic feet.  Safe yield is 8,730 
acre feet.

"Year to Date" is January to present for State water, April to present for Lopez deliveries, and July to present 
for rainfall.

1574.21

April to Present

3.73

Arroyo Grande 2290

Lopez Dam Operations
Lake Elevation (full at 522.37 feet) 480.12
Storage (full at 49200 acre feet) 19749
Rainfall 3.06
Downstream Release (4200 acre feet/year) 377.78
Spillage (acre feet) 0

This Month Year to Date

2930.79
0.00

564.00 175.55

Entl. Surplus
Usage

2854.00

Total

Lopez Water Deliveries

301.40Oceano CSD 303 75.00 21.27378.00
544.61Grover Beach 800 197.00 80.98997.00

1041.41Pismo Beach 892 220.00 0.001112.00
56.84CSA 12 245 60.00 7.43305.00

205.00205 0.00
78.6683.96 5.51

0.000 0.00

State Water Deliveries

3518.474530 1116.00 285.235646.00 385.73408.96 14.53Total 

Contractor

Difference (feet) -42.25
% Full 40.1%

Comments: Surplus water shown is as designated per BOS May 15, 2018 Declaration of Surplus Water.

1) Oceano  supplied State Water to Canyon Crest via  Arroyo Grande's Edna turn out. A total 
of  1.98 AF delivered to Canyon Crest  was added to Oceano's State Water usage this month
and 1.98 AF was subtracted from Arroyo Grande's usage this month.

April to Present Lopez Entitlement+Surplus Water Usage

0
50

100
150
200
250

Jan
'18

Feb
'18

Mar
'18

Apr
'18

May
'18

Jun
'18

Jul
'18

Aug
'18

Sep
'18

Oct
'18

Nov
'18

A
cr

e 
Fe

et

AG GB OCSD PB CSA12

January to Present State Water Usage

0

20

40

60

80

Jan
'18

Feb
'18

Mar
'18

Apr
'18

May
'18

Jun
'18

Jul
'18

Aug
'18

Sep
'18

Oct
'18

Nov
'18

A
cr

e 
Fe

et

OCSD PB CSA12 SanMig

San Miguelito 102.07120 9.02

This Month

%
Total

January to Present
Usage

This Month
%  of 

Annual 
Request

Usage %  of Annual 
Request

175.55

Total Water 
Deliveries 

This Month

21.27
80.98

130.55
12.94
9.02

430.31

Annual 
Request

0.00
Usage

0.00
0.00

130.55
0.00

%
0.00
0.00
0.00

149.41
0.00

1574.21
301.40
544.61
892.00
56.84

3369.06130.55 610.00

SWP 
Deliveries

SWP 
Deliveries

Change in 
Storage

28 13.47

1354.02This Month Stored State Water

13.4%

7.7% 55.2%
7.0% 79.7%

10.1% 54.6%
0.0% 93.7%
3.0% 18.6%

0.0% 100.0%
6.6% 93.7%

0.0% 0.0%

6.3% 62.3% 3.6% 94.3%
7.5% 85.1%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

59.3%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

67.9%
0.0%

68.7%
99.5%
68.1%

100.0%
23.2%

74.4%11.7%

Entitlement Surplus
Usage % Usage %

Entitlement Surplus
Usage %

1340.55Last Month Stored State Water

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 Page 1 of  1Report printed by: AdminData entered by: D. Bravo

10 of 3810 of 38 Item IV. C.



San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water District
Zone 3 - Lopez Project - Monthly Operations Report

December, 2018

244.76

Note:  Deliveries are in acre feet.  One acre foot = 325, 850 gallons or 43, 560 cubic feet.  Safe yield is 8,730 
acre feet.

"Year to Date" is January to present for State water, April to present for Lopez deliveries, and July to present 
for rainfall.

1721.26

April to Present

5.02

Arroyo Grande 2290

Lopez Dam Operations
Lake Elevation (full at 522.37 feet) 479.5
Storage (full at 49200 acre feet) 19457
Rainfall 1.29
Downstream Release (4200 acre feet/year) 320.08
Spillage (acre feet) 0

This Month Year to Date

3250.87
0.00

564.00 147.05

Entl. Surplus
Usage

2854.00

Total

Lopez Water Deliveries

327.76Oceano CSD 303 75.00 1.60378.00
617.82Grover Beach 800 197.00 73.21997.00

1112.00Pismo Beach 892 220.00 0.001112.00
64.60CSA 12 245 60.00 7.76305.00

241.50205 36.50
81.8383.96 3.17

0.000 0.00

State Water Deliveries

3843.444530 1116.00 229.625646.00 434.23408.96 48.50Total 

Contractor

Difference (feet) -42.87
% Full 39.5%

Comments: Surplus water shown is as designated per BOS May 15, 2018 Declaration of Surplus Water.

1) Oceano  supplied State Water to Canyon Crest via  Arroyo Grande's Edna turn out. A total
of  1.46 AF delivered to Canyon Crest  was added to Oceano's State Water usage this month
and 1.46 AF was subtracted from Arroyo Grande's usage this month.

April to Present Lopez Entitlement+Surplus Water Usage

0
50

100
150
200
250

Jan
'18

Feb
'18

Mar
'18

Apr
'18

May
'18

Jun
'18

Jul
'18

Aug
'18

Sep
'18

Oct
'18

Nov
'18

Dec
'18

A
cr

e 
Fe

et

AG GB OCSD PB CSA12

January to Present State Water Usage

0

20

40

60

80

Jan
'18

Feb
'18

Mar
'18

Apr
'18

May
'18

Jun
'18

Jul
'18

Aug
'18

Sep
'18

Oct
'18

Nov
'18

Dec
'18

A
cr

e 
Fe

et

OCSD PB CSA12 SanMig

San Miguelito 110.90120 8.83

This Month

%
Total

January to Present
Usage

This Month
%  of 

Annual 
Request

Usage %  of Annual 
Request

147.05

Total Water 
Deliveries 

This Month

26.36
73.21

107.09
10.93
8.83

373.47

Annual 
Request

0.00
Usage

24.76
0.00

70.59
0.00

%
0.00

24.76
0.00

220.00
0.00

1721.26
303.00
617.82
892.00
64.60

3598.6895.35 692.00

SWP 
Deliveries

SWP 
Deliveries

Change in 
Storage

82 33.50

1387.52This Month Stored State Water

21.9%

6.4% 60.3%
0.5% 86.7%
9.2% 62.0%
0.0% 100.0%
3.2% 21.2%

17.8% 117.8%
3.8% 97.5%

0.0% 0.0%

5.1% 68.1% 11.9% 106.2%
7.4% 92.4%

0.0%
33.0%

0.0%
32.1%

0.0%

0.0%
33.0%

0.0%
100.0%

0.0%

75.2%
100.0%

77.2%
100.0%

26.4%

79.4%8.5%

Entitlement Surplus
Usage % Usage %

Entitlement Surplus
Usage %

1354.02Last Month Stored State Water

Tuesday, January 8, 2019 Page 1 of  1Report printed by: AdminData entered by: D. Bravo

Item IV. C.11 of 3811 of 38



U.S. DROUGHT MONITOR

July 2017 September 2017 November 2017 January 2018 March 2018

May 2018 July 2018 September 2018 November 2018 January 2019

Item V. A.12 of 3812 of 38



NOAA TEMPERATURE FORECAST

November

November Meeting

January

January Meeting
Item V. A.13 of 3813 of 38



NOAA PRECIPITATION FORECAST

November Meeting

November

January Meeting

January

Item V. A.14 of 3814 of 38



ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

January 17, 2019 

TO:    Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee 

FROM:         Technical Advisory Committee  

SUBJECT:      Enactment of Low Reservoir Response Plan - 2019 

Discussion 
The goal of the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP) is to reduce downstream releases and 
municipal diversions from Lopez Reservoir, when the lake falls below 20,000-acre feet of 
storage, to preserve water within the reservoir under drought conditions.  The LRRP can be 
enacted when two conditions are met: 1) Reservoir is at or below 20,000 AF and 2) The 
Board of Supervisors declares a local drought emergency. 

Due to the lake not fully recovering from the previous 4-year drought and lake capacity 
hovering around 20,000 AF the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) has been developing 
criteria that could be used to determine when we might want to enter the LRRP in 2019.  
Since the potential increase to storage due to rainfall for this rain season is unknown TAC is 
recommending the following criteria: 

If storage level of the reservoir is below 20,000 AF on June 1, 2019, request the 
Board of Supervisors declare a local drought emergency for Zone 3 retroactive to 
April 1, 2019.  

If the Board of Supervisors grants the declaration of a local drought emergency the LRRP 
would go into effect retroactive to April 2019 the beginning of the Lopez water year.  As 
stated in the LRRP, at the 20,000 AF level only downstream releases are reduced by 10%.  
At the 15,000 AF level municipal deliveries are then reduced by 10%. 

It is anticipated that should the above criteria be met staff would bring a Board item for 
approval in early July. 

Recommendation 
Endorse the above plan developed by the TAC which sets criteria for entering the LRRP in 
2019. 

Item V. B.15 of 3815 of 38



TO: Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee 

FROM: David Spiegel, PE 

DATE: January 9, 2019 

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update 

Project Updates: 

• Equipment Audit & Replacement – Ongoing (No Change)
o Work proposed to continue in 2018/19

• Spillway Assessment
o GEI’s Draft Report is under review

• Lopez Dam and Terminal Dam Hazard Classification
o DSOD had minor edits to the maps, tentatively approved
o Emergency Action Plans are in preparation for submittal in March

• Structural Assessment of Terminal Reservoir Dam – (No Change)
o Received one quote for geological investigation
o Budgeted for 19/20

• Fault Zone Assessment – Dam Left Abutment
o TAC requested a risk assessment

• Equipment Storage – (No Change)
o On hold pending Terminal Reservoir Dam geotechnical investigation

• Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades – (No Change)
o Implementation of safety railings and catwalks in DAF building in progress

• Domestic and Fire Tank
o Collings and Associates has visited the site and is preparing a report on required fire flow

requirements

• Rebuild Membrane Feed Pumps (1 per year) (No Change)
o Second pump is being scheduled for removal and rebuilding in the Fall after high demands 

subside
o 

• Lopez Leach Field Replacement
o Geosolutions has prepared a summary report of their geologic investigation and septic

system design.  Report is under review

Item VI. B.16 of 3816 of 38



• Existing Bypass Pipeline Condition Assessment
o An inspection has been completed, please see condition report by staff.

Upcoming Projects (Requested FY 2018/19): 

• Cathodic Protection Survey

• Ammonia Analyzer (2nd)

• Water Treatment Alternatives Study – Taste and Odor

• Improved Boat Access

Completed Projects 
• Sludge Bed Cleanout Repair – 4 total

• Turnout SCADA Project

• Ammonia Analyzer

• Sludge Repair on 4A

• Pressure Transducers

• Turnout Flow Meters

• Static Mixer

Item VI. B.17 of 3817 of 38



G:\Utilities\Zone 3\Easements\Goodman\ZONE 3 AC 1-17-2019 Goodman Easement Staff report.docx 

TO:

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
Department of Public Works 
Colt Esenwein, P.E., Director 

TO: Zone 3 Advisory Committee 

FROM: Jill Ogren, Senior Utilities Engineer 

DATE: January 17, 2019 

SUBJECT: Goodman Easement Request 

Summary: 
Staff is requesting input from the Advisory Committee related to a request from Scot Goodman 
(applicant) to be granted an easement through Zone 3 property to access a land locked parcel 
he recently purchased from Carlos Castaneda.  Castaneda had also requested an easement for 
the same parcel back in June of 2016, that request was presented to your Advisory Committee 
in September 2016 and the committee took no formal action on the item. Subsequently 
Castaneda decided not to pursue the access.  The current applicant is proposing a different 
alignment for the access route, which would require an easement from Zone 3 and no other 
parcels. See attached maps and road alignment plans. 

Requested Action:   
Please provide feedback and comments for consideration by the Applicant, related to the 
concept easement. The applicant is seeking the Advisory Committee’s recommendation to seek 
Board of Supervisor’s approval for a Consent of Land Owner Agreement.  If this is approved, it 
would allow the applicant to move forward with the Land Use process but does not give 
approval for the easement which would be conditional on meeting all conditions of the planning 
process and further review by Zone 3. 

The easement request was presented to the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee on 
December 12, 2018.  TAC is advising that the applicant be given pre-authorization for an 
easement which is the same as a “Consent of Land Owner Agreement” so they can proceed 
with the land use process but subject to further review by Zone 3 Advisory Committee and TAC 
of the CEQA document and conditions for development to evaluate consistency with the 
sanitary survey and Lopez operations. See attached flow chart. 

Background: 
Mr. Goodman approached the County in early 2018 for an easement.  During a pre-application 
meeting in July with Public Works and the Planning and Building Department, he was informed 
that any consideration for granting of an easement within Zone 3 would require  

 formal request/application,
 reimbursement agreement and deposit

Item VIII. B.18 of 3818 of 38



G:\Utilities\Zone 3\Easements\Goodman\ZONE 3 AC 1-17-2019 Goodman Easement Staff report.docx 

 support of Zone 3 and Board of Supervisors acceptance (Consent of Land Owner),
 possible discretionary/CEQA review (and approval),
 agreement for payment to the County for the value (TBD) of the easement,
 resolution by the Board, and
 payment of processing fees

The reimbursement agreement was executed in November 2018 along with payment of a $2000 
deposit. At this time they are seeking the support of Zone 3. 

Since the meeting, Mr. Goodman has hired a licensed Engineer to develop plans for a 1.6-mile 
access road of which ~ 0.8 miles is on Zone 3 Flood Control District Property.  They have 
provided a map, and proposed alignment, and the information from their pre-application 
meeting. 

Proposed Easement: 
See attached alignment plans 

Proposed Easement Use: 
The applicant has stated that the purpose of the easement is for access and the intended use of 
the property is for a detached single-family residence. The proposed easement exhibit indicates 
a 16% max slope access; consistent with CalFire standards for residential driveways.   

Property Information: 
The undeveloped property totals approximately 335 acres and is made up of two APN’s.  It is 
zoned RL (Rural Lands). The property is within the Lopez Lake Sensitive Resource Area (SRA); 
lying entirely within the Lopez watershed, with portions being within the Lopez view shed.  The 
property is almost entirely covered in brush or woodland. County GIS indicates that the average 
slope of the property exceeds 30% slope. There is no evidence of any historic uses of the site, 
such as farming, grazing or agriculture.   

Historic Access: 
The parcel in question is ‘land locked’; it has no legal access.  Research by County staff has 
determined that prior and current owners were and are fully aware of the parcel’s ‘land locked’ 
nature. The property is bound along its most northerly line by Zone 3 property, and along all 
other sides by private property.   

There is no evidence that the parcel has ever had a legal established right of access through 
Zone 3, or former ownership.  Additionally, staff is unaware of access rights or agreements in 
favor of the property through adjoining private properties. 

Item VIII. B.19 of 3819 of 38



G:\Utilities\Zone 3\Easements\Goodman\ZONE 3 AC 1-17-2019 Goodman Easement Staff report.docx 

Next Steps:  
Easement Agreement 

If the Advisory Committee recommends taking a Land Owner Agreement to the Board of 
Supervisors  

The Board of Supervisors, on behalf of Zone 3, would take action to approve (or deny) an 
agreement between Zone 3 and Mr. Goodman. If approved, Zone 3 would conditionally agree to 
grant the easement.  Such action would allow the applicant to proceed with the discretionary 
review process through Planning and Building. Staff would seek Advisory Committee input 
throughout the agreement and discretionary review processes. 

Discretionary Review 

As part of the final agreement, granting and recordation of the easement would be conditional; 
requiring at a minimum, compensation for the easement and the receipt of discretionary 
approvals from all interested agencies. Approving agencies may include County Planning & 
Building, Cal Fish & Wildlife, Army Corp, etc.  The full extent of the easement and its’ ultimate 
use is unknown, making it difficult to determine the level of discretionary review required.   

Item VIII. B.20 of 3820 of 38



Vicinity Map 

Item VIII. B.21 of 3821 of 38



GARING, TAYLOR & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CIVIL ENGINEERS       SURVEYORS       PLANNERS

141 SOUTH ELM STREET · ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420 · (805) 489-1321

·
·

·
·

Item VIII. B.22 of 3822 of 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
1500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1500

AutoCAD SHX Text
10+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
20+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
30+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
40+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
50+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
60+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
70+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
80+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
90+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
12+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
14+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
16+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
18+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
22+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
24+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
26+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
28+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
32+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
34+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
36+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
38+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
42+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
44+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
46+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
48+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
52+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
54+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
56+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
58+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
62+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
64+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
66+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
68+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
72+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
74+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
76+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
78+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
82+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
84+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
86+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
88+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
92+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
96+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOPEZ DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
1800

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
1800

AutoCAD SHX Text
10+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
15+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
20+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
25+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
30+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
35+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
40+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
45+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
50+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
55+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
60+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
65+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
70+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
75+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
80+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
85+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
90+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95+50

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44%

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.80%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.42%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 10+00.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
560.000' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 15+42.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.545' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 20+23.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
680.111' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 25+69.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
758.992' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 31+13.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
844.869' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 34+58.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
849.482' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 54+98.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
1170.796' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 57+43.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
1198.278' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 59+39.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
1166.939' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 71+02.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
1084.737' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 73+42.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
1115.255' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 75+42.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
1145.541' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 82+68.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
1253.760' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 94+70.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
1439.099' GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.78%

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.18%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.80%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.34%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-16.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-16.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.92%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.94%

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.69%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.14%

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.21%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.75%

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOODMAN RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018-07-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-704

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DRIVEWAY LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING NOTES: ASSUMED CUT SLOPES 1:1 AND FILL SLOPES 2:1 CUT: 316,000 CUBIC YARDS FILL: 270,000 CUBIC YARDS (318,000 CY WITH SHRINKAGE FACTOR) 8630 FOOT LONG DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
16% MAXIMUM GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFILE SCALE:  1"=400' HORIZONTAL  1"=200' VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF GRADING



Item VIII. B.23 of 3823 of 38



Item VIII. B.24 of 3824 of 38



Item VIII. B.25 of 3825 of 38



Item VIII. B.26 of 3826 of 38



Item VIII. B.27 of 3827 of 38



Item VIII. B.28 of 3828 of 38



Item VIII.B.29 of 38



Item

30 of 38 Item VIII. B.



31 of 38 Item VIII. B.



Item VIII. B.32 of 3832 of 38



Item VIII. B.33 of 3833 of 38



34 of 38 Item VIII. B.



35 of 38 Item VIII. B.



36 of 38 Item VIII. B.



37 of 38 Item VIII. B.



Item VIII. B.38 of 38


	Item VIII. B. Flood Control Easement Request.pdf
	ZONE 3 AC 1-17-2019 Goodman Easement Staff report
	Vicinity Map
	2018-07-30 Road Alignment (exploded) Alt Entry
	Pre- app Meeting notes from Engr.
	Flowchart of Easement Process




